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OFFICE OF THE CLERK
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 533
Fairfax , Virginia 22035-0072

Tel: 703-324-3151 • Fax: 703-324-3926 • TTY: 703-324-3903

www.fairfaxcounty .gov/gov/bos/clerkhomepage.htm
Email : clerktothebos @ fairfax county.gov

Elizabeth D. Baker, Land Use Coordinator
Walsh, Colucci, Lubeley, Emrich & Terpak, PC
2200 Clarendon Boulevard, 13th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201-3359

RE: Rezoning Application Number RZ 2003-PR-008
(Concurrent with PCA 75-7-004-2)

Dear Ms. Baker:

Enclosed you will find a copy of an Ordinance adopted by the Board of Supervisors at a
regular meeting held on March 15 , 2004 , granting Rezoning Application Number RZ 2003-PR-
008 in the name of Lincoln Property Company, Southwest, Inc., to rezone certain property in
the Providence District from the 1-3 District and Highway Corridor Overlay District to the
PDH-30 District and Highway Corridor Overlay District to permit residential development at a
density of 29.9 dwelling units per acre (du/ac) including bonus density for the provision of
Affordable Dwelling Units (ADUs), located on the east side of Gallows Road and on the north
and south sides of Science Application Court, Tax Map 39-2 ((1)) 13 pt., subject to the
proffers dated March 14, 2004, consisting of approximately 19.04 acres.

The Board also:

• Modified the transitional screening requirement along the southeastern
and southern boundaries where the multi-family units abuts the Courts of
Tysons and Tysons Executive Village communities in favor of that shown
on the Conceptual Development Plan/Final Development Plan (CDP/FDP).

• Waived the barrier requirement along the southeastern and southern
boundaries where the multi-family housing abuts the Courts of Tysons and
Tysons Executive Village communities in favor of that shown on the
CDP/FDP.
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• Modified the non-core streetscape design along Gallows Road for the
Tysons Urban Center in favor of that shown on the CDP/FDP.

• Waived the 200 square foot privacy yard requirement for single family
attached homes.

• Modified the loading space requirement for multi-family dwellings in favor
of one loading space provided for each of the buildings (two total spaces).

• Waived the 600-foot maximum private street length requirement.

Sincerely,

Nancy Ve.
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

NV/ns

cc: Chairman Gerald E . Connolly
Supervisor Linda Q. Smyth, Providence District
Janet Coldsmith, Director, Real Estate Div., Dept. of Tax Administration
Michael R. Congleton, Deputy Zoning Enforcement Branch
Barbara A. Byron, Director, Zoning Evaluation Div., DPZ
Thomas Conry, Dept . Mgr. -- GIS - Mapping/Overlay
Angela K . Rodeheaver, Section Chief, Trnsprt'n. Planning Div.,
Charles Strunk, Project Planning Section , Dept . of Transportation
Michelle Brickner, Deputy Director, DPWES
Kenny King, Proffer Administrator, Plans & Document Control , OSDS, DPWES
Department of Highways - VDOT
Irish Granfield, Land Acqu.. & Planning Div., Park Authority
District Planning Commissioner
James Patteson, Director, Facilities Mgmt. Div., DPWES ,Voc
Gary Chevalier , Office of Capital Facilities, Fairfax County Public Schools

J cs o^
^^Vo ^^c ^^O \oc

octi



At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, held in
the Board Auditorium in the Government Center at Fairfax, Virginia, on the 15th day of
March, 2004, the following ordinance was adopted:

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE
PROPOSAL NUMBER RZ 2003-PR-008
(CONCURRENT WITH PCA 75-7-004-2)

WHEREAS, Lincoln Property Company, Southwest, Inc., filed in the proper form an
application requesting the zoning of a certain parcel of land herein after described, from the 1-3
District and Highway Corridor Overlay District to the PDH-30 District and Highway Corridor
Overlay District, and

WHEREAS, at a duly called public hearing the Planning Commission considered the
application and the propriety of amending the Zoning Ordinance in accordance therewith, and
thereafter did submit to this Board its recommendation, and

WHEREAS, this Board has today held a duly called public hearing and after due
consideration of the reports, recommendation, testimony and facts pertinent to the proposed
amendment, the Board is of the opinion that the Ordinance should be amended,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED , that that certain parcel of land situated in
the Providence District, and more particularly described as follows (see attached legal
description):

Be, and hereby is, zoned to the PDH-30 District and Highway Corridor Overlay District, and
said property is subject to the use regulations of said PDH-30 District and Highway Corridor
Overlay District, District, and further restricted by the conditions proffered and accepted
pursuant to Va. Code Ann., §15.2-2303(a), which conditions are in addition to the Zoning
Ordinance regulations applicable to said parcel, and

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, that the boundaries of the Zoning Map heretofore
adopted as a part of the Zoning Ordinance be, and they hereby are, amended in accordance
with this enactment, and that said zoning map shall annotate and incorporate by reference the
additional conditions governing said parcel.

GIVEN under my hand this 15th day of March, 2004.

Nancy Ve
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors



ENGINEERS n PLANNERS n LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS n

JULY 16, 2003

DESCRIPTION OF
ALL OF PARCEL`A /B'

SCIENCE APPLICATION COURT
BEING

A PORTION OF
CAMPUS POINT REALTY CORP. II

DEED BOOK 11073 PAGE 890
. PROVIDENCE DISTRICT

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

SURVEYORS n GPS SERVICES

Being all of Parcels A & B, Science Application Court as shown on a plat entitled
"Plat Showing Parcels A, B, & C, Science Application Court, being the Subdivision of the
Property of Campus Point Realty Corporation II" dated April, 2003 and prepared by
VIKA, Inc., also being a portion of Campus Point Realty Corp. II as recorded in Deed
Book 11073 at Page 890 as recorded in the Land Records of Fairfax County, Virginia
and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning for the same at a point on the southwesterly comer of Tysons
Executive Village as recorded in Deed Book 9777 at Page 1353 among the
aforementioned Land Records, said point also being on the northerly line of Lot 9,
Courthouse Station (Deed Book 7195 Page 438); thence leaving said Tysons Executive
Village and running with Courthouse Station the following course and distance

1. North 79°10'45" West, 417.85 feet to a point being the southeasterly corner
of Courts of Tyson (Deed Book 6020 Page 699); thence leaving Courthouse
Station and running with Courts of Tyson the following course and distance

2. North 10°50'42" East, 461.65 feet to the a point; thence continuing with
Courts of Tyson the following course and distance

3. North 79°09'07" West, 877.50 feet to a point on the easterly right-of-way of
Gallows Road - Route 650 (width varies); thence leaving the aforementioned
Courts of Tyson and running with Gallows Road the following five (5) courses
and distances

4. North 11°10'53" East, 142.86 feet to a point of curvature (non-tangent);
thence

5. 43.43 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 209.00 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of North 17°08'03" East , 43.36 feet to a
point of compound curvature; thence

VIKA Incorporated
8180 Greensboro Drive, Suite 200 n McLean, VA 22102 n (703) 442-7800 n Fax (703) 761-2787

Mclean. VA n Germantown, MD n Leesburg. VA



6. 158 . 13 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 416.60 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of North 00018'25" East , 157.18 feet to a
point; thence

7. 46.73 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 35.54 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of North 27°08'36" East, 43.43 feet to a
point; thence

8. South 21004'15* West, 19.05 feet to a point ; thence

9. South 62°49'39" East, 13.74 feet to a point ; thence

10. North 27°10'21" East, 46.73 feet to a point; thence

11. North 64°49'49" East, 240.41 feet to a point ; thence

12. 125.73 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 200.00 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of North 82°50'21" East, 123.67 feet to a
point; thence

13. South 79°09'07" East, 424.76 feet to a point; thence

14. 175.26 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 168.00 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of South 49°15'56" East, 167.42 feet to a
point; thence

15. South 19°22'46" East, 121.31 feet to a point; thence

16. North 73°33'08" East, 169.34 feet to a point on the westerly right-of-way line
of Interstate Route 495 (variable width right-of-way); thence running with
Interstate Route 495 the following three (3) courses and distances

17. South 16026'52" East, 64.26 feet to a point of curvature; thence

18. 423.65 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 11 ,609.16
feet and a chord bearing and distance of South 11 °28'32" East, 423.63 feet to
a point ; thence leaving said Interstate Route 495 and running with the
westerly line of the aforementioned Tysons Executive Village the following
course and distance

19. South 10°54 '22" West, 485.88 to the point of beginning containing 829,386
square feet or 19.04008 acres of land.

X:1Data\6000-699916235F\DescxiptionWarceI A 8 7-16-03.doc
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PROFFERS

PCA 75-7-004-2

March 11, 2004

Pursuant to Section 2-2303(a), Code of Virginia, 1950 as amended, and subject to the
Board of Supervisors approval of the requested Proffered Condition Amendment on property
identified as Tax Map 39-2 ((1)) pt. 13 (hereinafter referred to as the "Subject Property"), the
Applicant and owners for themselves, successors and assigns proffer that the development of the
Subject Property shall be subject to approved proffers dated November 21, 1985, which shall
remain in full force and effect except as amended below.

1. Development of the Subject Property shall be in substantial conformance with the
Generalized Development Plan ("GDP") prepared by VIKA, Incorporated, consisting of
Sheets 4 and 5, dated January 17, 2003 as revised through March 11, 2004. The
maximum FAR permitted on the Subject Property is .50. However, in order to construct
the unbuilt 31,194 gross square feet permitted, a Proffered Condition Amendment and
Generalized Development Plan Amendment shall be required.

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON NEXT PAGE]



PROFFERS
PCA 75-7-004-2

APPLICANT

LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY
SOUTHWEST, INC.

By: Richard N. Rose
Its: Vice President

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]



PROFFERS
PCA 75-7-004-2

TITLE OWNER

CAMPUS POINT REALTY CORPORATION II

By: Frederick R. Hazard
Its: 'President

[SIGNATURES END]



n TIC RESERVE AT TYSON'S CORNER n
CONCEPTUAL/FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RZ/FDP 1003-PR-008

GEMMALEM DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR PCA 75-7-004-2

PROVIDENCE DISTRICT
FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA
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ZONING APPLICATION SUMMARY REPORT

APPLICATION NUMBER : PCA 75-7 -004-02

PS USER GENERATED REPORTS f

DECISION DATE : 3/15/2004 HEARING BODY: BOS

CRD: NO MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: PROVIDENCE

APPLICANT NAME LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY SOUTHWEST INC

STAFF COORDINATOR : CBELGI ACTION : APPROVE

DECISION SUMMARY:
APPROVED MARCH 15, 2004 , MOTION BY SUPERVISOR SMYTH

ZONING INFORMATION

EXISTING ZONING APPROVED AREA

DISTRICT AREA DISTRICT AREA

I- 3 33.74 ACRES I- 3 33.74 ACRES

TOTAL 33.74 ACRES TOTAL 33.74 ACRES

TAX MAP NUMBERS

039-2-/Oil /0013-

ZONING DISTRICT: I- 3

LAND USE

OFFC/GENRL

TOTAL

APPROVED ZONING DISTRICT DATA

APROVED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT APROVED NON-RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DWELLING LAND UNIT OF NO. UNIT OF LAND UNIT O F
MEASURE OF FLOOR AREA MEASURE MEASURE FAR

IINITR APPA Aniirc AREA
320,290.00 SQ FEET 14.71 ACRES 0.50

14.71. ACRES

PROFFER INFORMATION

PROFFER STATEMENT DATE : 03-11-2004

ITEM DUE DATE TRIGGER NO. TRIGGER EVENT CONTRIB AMT EXPIRATION DATE

PROFFERED PLANS 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

USE RESTRICTIONS 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01 -01-0001

PREVIOUS PROFFERS REMAIN IN EFFEC 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

WAIVERS /MODIFICATIONS

APPROVED WAIVERS /MODIFICATIONS

MODIFY STREETSCAPE & TRAIL REQUIREMENT

MODIFY TRANSITIONAL SCREENING REQUIREMENT

WAIVE 600 FT. PRIVATE STREET LENGTH REQUIREMENT

WAIVE BARRIER REQUIREMENT



PLEASE TYPE
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COMMONWEALTH OF' VIRGINIA
COUNTY OF FAIRFAX %

APPLICATION FOR '1112 1113MEM

APPLICATION NO. "'
(Assigned by Staff)

PROFFERED CONDITION AMENDMENT

PETITION

TO: THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA
I (We), Lincoln Property eompanv Southwest , Inc. the applicant(s),

petition you to adopt an ordinance amending the Zoning Map of Fairfax County, Virginia, by
reclassifying from the n^ /a District to the n/a
District the property described below and outlined in red on the Zoning Section-Sheet(s)
accompanying and made a part of this application.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

See ettaehed

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Lot(s) slack(s) Subdivision Deed Book Page No.

TAX MAP DESCRIPTION:
39-2 ((1)) 13 33.74 acres

Nap No . Doable Circle No . Single Circle No. Parcel(s)/Lot(s ) No. Total Area ( Ac.or Sq.Ft.)

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PROPERTY : ( If any)
7970-7981 Science Applications Court

ADVERTISING DESCRIPTION : ( Ex. South of Rt. 236, 1000 feet west of Rt. 274)
East side of Gallows Road (Rte,--f64f4 and Kidwell Drive (Rte -w--43,6), on both sides of
Science Applicatons Court.

^. PRESENT USE: _ Office

i. PROPOSED USE: Office

F. SUPERVISOR DISTRICT: Providence

The Dale ( s) and address ( s) of owner ( s) of record shall be provided on the affidavit fors attached and made part of this application.

The undersigned has the pover to authorize and does hereby authorize Fairfax County staff representatives on official business to
enter on the subject property as'necessary to process the application.

-Martin D. Walsh, attorney/agent, Walsh, Colucci, ta6e . yiyjsEmris & Terpak, P.C.
Type or Print lase o f App l icant or Agent

-1 igna ure'.o App l ican t or Agent-

2200 ClarandonBoulevard,- 13th Floor, Arlington, Va 22201

_ 703-528-4700
e tp one No. l ose Work

Please provide sane and telephone Busher of contact person if different from above.

Elizabeth Baker, 528-4700 -,

DO NOT WRITE IN, THIS SPACE

Date application received: Application Fee Paid:

n.+. s^nnl i cation accepted : r f t_ `^ t _ Form RZ 410/89



Planning Commission Meeting
March 4, 2004
Verbatim Excerpt

RZ 2003-PR-008 - LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY SOUTHWEST INC.
FDP 2003-PR-008 - LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY SOUTHWEST INC.
PCA 75-7-004-2 - LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY SOUTHWEST INC.

Decision Only During Commission Matters
(Public Hearing was held on January 22, 2004)

Commissioner Lawrence: Mr. Chairman, I have a brief statement to make before introducing
motions , with your permission.

Commissioner Alcorn : Mr. Chairman? Before Mr . Lawrence starts, is this on the Lincoln
Property case?

Commissioner Lawrence: It is.

Commissioner Alcorn : I'd like to disclose that I am a former employee of Science Applications
International Corporation, as is my wife , and we still both own stock in that company, so I will
be recusing myself from this case. And I did miss the public hearing.

Vice Chairman Byers: Okay . Go ahead, Mr. Lawrence. The floor is yours.

Commissioner Lawrence : Thank you, Mr . Chairman. First , I want to acknowledge the work of
all parties involved in this application . In particular, Cathy Belgin of County staff has provided
unflagging support through an intense process . The applicants , and especially Elizabeth Baker,
have engaged in a continuous and thorough dialog with the affected community. In turn, the
various homeowners associations have given clear and complete views on their position and
needs at each step , with results which I will discuss tonight. So I begin with many thanks to one
and all. This application , in common with others now in process before this Commission, seeks
approval for residential buildings including townhomes and apartments . However, two features
set this application apart from others we examine : first, the residential use is proposed in place
of previously approved office use for this site , and second, the site falls within the Tysons Corner
Urban Center . While neither of these features is unique , their combination at this particular site
generates certain opportunities that would not otherwise be available. The Comprehensive Plan
for the Tysons Comer Urban Center was adopted in 1994. I have reviewed some of the files
from the 1994 Planning Commission public hearing conducted on the plan . As might be
expected, many of the names to be found in the file are different from those now on the brass
plates in front of our seats . However, some are familiar ones . Mrs. Harsel , Mr. Murphy, and Mr.
Byers were here then. Another person who was involved at the time provided testimony giving
the consensus views of the Countywide Federation of Citizen Associations , one Mr . Gerald
Connolly . In the decade since the plan was adopted , no changes for the land area involved in the
application have taken place . The vision provides for mid -rise office use, with options for
residential development at 8 to 12 or at 20 to 30 dwellings units per acre. At the time the Plan
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was adopted, some office buildings were already on the site, and approval was given for more.
The site is located at the southeastern edge of the Tysons Corner Urban Center. Just below it to
the south is the Courts of Tysons complex, which also was already built at the time. That site,
Land Area F-7, is the extreme southern parcel to be found within the Urban Center boundary
along Gallows Road. To the north of the applicant site, just past the point where northbound
Gallows traffic makes its left curve toward Old Courthouse Road, is Heritage Point. This
complex is also within the Tysons Corner Urban Center, occupying a fairly small triangular
parcel of land that was also called out in the Comprehensive Plan for residential use at 8 to 12 or
20 to 30 dwelling units per acre, and is built out in the 8 to 12 range. In general , the vision of the
plan is for the Urban Center to have clearly defined edges, but for the non-core land areas at the
edges to provide some transition from the more suburban communities surrounding the Center to
the very intense "downtown" core. This vision is realized, for example, in the multi-family units
along Magarity Road at the Urban Center's eastern boundary. The apartments provide a
transition from the Center's inner parts to the single family neighborhoods outside the.boundary.
As another example, the increased density at Courts of Tysons, zoned for 20 dwelling units to the
acre, provides a transition from the lower 8 to 12 density of Courthouse Station, further south on
Gallows and just outside the Urban Center border. The Plan gives very clear guidance that stable
residential communities adjacent to the Tysons Comer Urban Center edges should be protected
from intrusive effects produced by the more urban intensities of the Center itself. The need for
transitions in density to and from the Urban Center stems from this attribute of the Plan ; so also
does a transition in building height limits from the core to the edges of the Urban Center. Two
main aspects of this application, which must be weighed in any decision about its merits, are its
proposed density and its fulfillment of the need for transition. The two are related and are
expressed in the proposed site design. Density above that of Courts of Tysons, and well above
that of Heritage Point or of Merry Oaks across Gallows Road to the west, is proposed. The
applicant chose the 20 to 30 range from the options provided in the Comprehensive Plan.
Although this density can be viewed as a transition upward from the 20 per acre zoning of Courts
of Tysons, it is markedly above that of its western and northern neighbors. Density is one of the
main issues brought out at the public hearing for this application by the coalition of adjacent and
nearby homeowner associations, and it remains an issue with them. Yet from the County
viewpoint, higher density is exactly what is expected inside the boundaries of the Tysons Corner
Urban Center. Further, this particular application proposes residential use. Higher residential
density will put more people closer to the jobs and shopping to be found at Tysons. The
Comprehensive Plan envisions at least 12,700 residential units to be built within the Center's
bounds; at present only about 9,200 of those planned units are in place or approved. Other
considerations aside, the choice of the 20 to 30 range will provide more movement toward the
residential goals than the choice of the 8 to 12 range for this site . For the County as a whole, this
is a positive choice. But other considerations cannot be arbitrarily set aside. There remains the
transition aspect. There is also the inevitable impact of higher density on public facilities and
infrastructure. These are major items in the overall assessment of the proposal. They also were
brought out in the public hearing. Since the hearing, the applicant and the community have been
in close contact and at work on the issues . Some significant changes in the proposal have
occurred. Commissioners received new proffers at the February 19 meeting, reflecting many of
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the changes . This evening we have the benefit of staff analysis on those changes, as well as the
most recent proffers from the applicant, and I will detail some of the changes that have been
made in this application . As first proposed , the site was to have some 736 dwelling units. In the
course of review , this was reduced to 640 units at the time of the public hearing. Since then, the
density has been further reduced to the present figure of 574 units . The applicant has come, in
the most recent change , from 33 . 6 dwelling units per acre to 30 . 15 per acre , now just barely
above the 20 to 30 range given in the Plan, and within it if the number of affordable dwelling
units , 31 in this case , is not added in. The community felt that in addition to the pure density
issue , the proposal was inconsistent with the character and nature of neighboring communities.
In particular, there was a 7 story building at the northeast corner of the site that posed a problem.
The applicant has removed that building from the plan . Townhouses now face townhouses along
the whole of the Gallows Road portion of the site . They provide a transition to the apartments at
the,back of the site along the Beltway. There is a part of the site where -- as soon as I can turn
the page -- apartments face single family detached units at the southeast comer. But at this
corner it is over 200 feet from the apartments to the nearest home , with a tree and vegetation
buffer for screening . There is also a buffer between the townhomes on the site and those of
Courts of Tysons to the south . Because of the density reduction , that buffer is now a minimum
of 30 feet deep . Finally , Gallows Road itself separates the townhomes on the western border of
the site from those of the Merry Oaks development . The community expressed strong concerns
about traffic. Traffic congestion in our County is everywhere and Gallows Road is no exception.
It is true that the proposed residential use will generate fewer trips per day than the approved
office use . Nevertheless, traffic from the site will have its impact . If higher density residential is
to succeed at this site , it must have a strong Traffic Demand Management program. The
applicant has proffered to provide a program which will achieve the County's platinum rating.
The program includes elements such as facilities for telecommuting and provision of a concierge
service on-site to reduce the need for trips to the dry cleaners , the pharmacy, and so forth.
Within this program , there will be repeated measures to determine whether the overall Tysons
Comer Urban Center mode split of 20 percent trip reduction is being achieved and, if not, what
can be done to achieve it . Among the elements that may be brought into play is one that is
unique to this site . Since the office buildings at the north end of the land area will remain, the
possibility of instituting a "preferred employer " program with cost incentives for people who
work at the office to live on the site is available and is included in the TDM program. Other
elements are, for example , coordinating information on ridesharing , carpooling, and vanpools
within the site and with the surrounding neighbors. As a very direct TDM measure, the applicant
proffers for a shuttle to the Dunn Loring Metro Center with service to meet peak hour demands.

Another significant concern in the community was the question of impact on the schools. While
the applicant's reduction in density will correspondingly reduce the number of students generated
by the site, that reduction alone will not materially affect or resolve the school overcrowding
problem. That problem is not within our power to address in this process.

The community is concerned about parking. The applicant has proffered for an arrangement for
residents of the proposed development to use at least 150 existing on-site office parking spaces
outside business hours, to allow for overflow parking, as detailed in their Proffer Number 47.
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In the area of water drainage, the applicant is addressing a problem in the Courts of Tysons
complex, and also undertaking to improve the situation at Tysons Executive Village. Proffers
Numbers 27 and 28 detail this intention. The overall stormwater management design will also be
evaluated at the time of zoning.

The community has asked for a 4-foot tree buffer between Gallows Road and the development,
and for a 20-foot setback of greenspace before the first line of buildings on the site. Along
Gallows Road, the developer is generally following the Tysons Corner Urban Center non-core
guidelines in the design of the streetscape. A modification is requested to allow an 8-foot asphalt
trail rather than the more usual concrete sidewalk. The applicant's drawings show a 10-foot
green strip from the curb to the asphalt trail sidewalk, and trees -- planted every 50 feet with
shade trees which will grow tall enough to walk under and from trail to townhomes another 20
feet of green, again planted with shade trees in twice the number shown in the guidelines, so as
to preserve the shaded walkway after the widening of Gallows Road.

The community has asked for additional active recreation facilities on the site including, for
example, tennis courts, soccer fields, and open parkland. The applicant 's proposal falls
somewhat short in this area. The applicant has provided for open space in the form of .courtyards
and a common green, and for exercise in a swimming pool and through walking, jogging, and
anaerobics at outdoor exercise stations and an indoor fitness room. The applicant has proffered
to provide a fund for the recreation facilities using the sum of $955 per dwelling unit, with any
remainder after they are developed going to the County Park Authority. Although there are no
large outdoor playing courts or fields provided, the applicant has in the most recent changes
proffered for an indoor space to play half-court basketball and other sports.

The community has asked for services such as a dry cleaners and a convenience store. The
purpose here is to help keep residents from their vehicles by making such services available on-
site. The applicant proffers for a concierge service for residents, with pickup facilities for
groceries, pharmacy, dry cleaning, and the like, as an element of the overall TDM program.

There are other community concerns that may not be within the scope of this discussion but are
nevertheless worth mentioning here. For example, the community points out that sidewalks need
to extend not only within and across the present site, but also must be continuous from this
neighborhood to the core area of Tysons itself, if pedestrians are to be encouraged, and they must
be safe to use. This should certainly be done for all the pedestrian entrances to the Tysons
Corner Urban Center core area.

Also related to pedestrians, it is a matter of my own interest here that VDOT is in control of the
light timing on Gallows Road, including the crossing time for pedestrians. If we are to get
people to use the bus, they must be able to get safely to the southbound bus stop on Gallows.
This means crossing four traffic lanes, planned to be widened to six. It takes many seconds for a
person walking briskly to do that. I know that because I did it several times. Imagine the time
needed for a young mother pushing a stroller and leading another small child, or for a more
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elderly person, to make that crossing in the rain or with a slushy winter road . The applicant has
proffered for a center refuge at the crossing, if VDOT approves it, and will work with VDOT on
the timing for pedestrians . The applicant also proffers for a "countdown" type pedestrian
crossing signal, which should help.

Mr. Chairman , not all of the community concerns are met in this proposal . The coalition of
homeowner associations remains opposed to the application. The applicant has come a long way
indeed in meeting the concerns . Nevertheless , there are shortcomings here . But on balance, this
application gives us what the comprehensive master plan for the Tysons Corner Urban Center
seeks to achieve, an urban design, with transition to its more suburban neighbors , that will
concentrate residential units close to the Tysons core.

Mr. Chairman, I'm nearly ready to present motions on this application , but I need to ask the
applicant's representative a question or two. There are some proffer changes that are taking place
today.

Vice Chairman Byers: Well, I would just say you started out saying you had a brief statement to
make . We look forward to your lengthy statements.

Commissioner Lawrence : Thank you, sir . I'll keep that in mind.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Baker, will you come forward please and identify yourself?

Elizabeth Baker: My name is Elizabeth and I am a planner with Walsh, Colucci.

Commissioner Lawrence : Ms. Baker , I wonder if I could ask you a couple of questions about the
proffers? We have in the Traffic Demand Management plan some changes from the group of
strategies to be included under those that "may include the following" to move some to the "shall
include the following ." And those are a "sidewalk system designed to encourage and facilitate
pedestrian circulation" and "participation in a shuttle service as outlined in Proffer 13 ," and then
finally a change in wording in "instituting a Preferred Employer " program which simply says "to
encourage SAIC employees to live on the application property ." Do you agree to those?

Ms. Baker : Yes, that's no problem. I'll make those changes.

Commissioner Lawrence: And there is one other change which has happened just today. It
refers to the affordable dwelling units . Will you please elucidate on that change?

Ms. Baker : Sure . You asked us to look into providing some fully handicapped prepared ADU
units within the 31 that we are going to be providing on the site . So we have considered that and
that's not a problem . We're happy to change Proffer 38 to make sure it is stated that two of them
will be fully handicapped. And that would be one one-bedroom and one of the two-bedroom
units . So I will make that change as well.
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Commissioner Lawrence: That's what I had on proffer changes at the last minute. Now I'm
ready to move. Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF PCA 75-7-004-2,
SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTION OF PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE
CONTAINED IN ATTACHMENT 1A OF THE STAFF REPORT ADDENDUM AS
AMENDED TONIGHT.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Any discussion?

Commissioner Harsel: Mr. Chairman?

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel.

Commissioner Harsel: Concerning the TDM, Mr. Lawrence, what are you going to do with your
$40 per occupied dwelling unit? It says that if you do not meet your split survey, or if you are
not reduced by 20 percent, "$40 per occupied dwelling unit shall be contributed annually to a
TDM fund for the application property until such time...." -- so you are building this fund,
what's going to happen with this $40 per unit?

Commissioner Lawrence: Yes, ma'am. The $40 will go to, at least in part, to defray the cost of
additional marketing for the TDM program. For example, additional marketing might include,
besides having a website for the program, some more personal contact with residents to advise
them of the program's existence and what is happening with it. In other words, that provides
some dollars, not that many, but 40 per occupied unit to increase the leverage of the program. If
a new element comes into play as one of the ways to make the 20 percent, then that new element
needs to be marketed. For example, if we get into the Preferred Employer Program, then that
program needs to be marketed to SAIC employees and the $40 would help to defray those kinds
of costs.

Commissioner Harsel: So it's not going to do anything toward buying a shuttle bus to take
people up to Tysons Corner, or if people start to work with SAIC and they get reassigned to the
SAIC office down in Arlington, they are not going to provide subway tokens or --

Commissioner Lawrence: It could.

Commissioner Harsel: Well it doesn't say that. It just says that you are going to -- it doesn't say
what's going to happen with it. That was my confusion.
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Commissioner Lawrence: Mr. Chairman, I have a series of motions on modifications and
waivers . I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING WAIVERS AND
MODIFICATIONS. THE FIRST ONE, A MODIFICATION OF THE TRANSITIONAL
SCREENING REQUIREMENT ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN AND SOUTHERN
BOUNDARIES IN FAVOR OF THAT SHOWN ON THE CDP/FDP.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers : Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Any discussion? All in favor of the motion to
recommend the Board approve a modification of the screening requirements , say aye.

Commissioners: Aye. . _i I

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel : Abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers : Ms. Harsel abstains. Mr. Lawrence . And the motion passes.

Commissioner Lawrence : I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF a waiver of the barrier requirement
along -- whoops, I just did that one -- A MODIFICATION OF THE NON-CORE
STREETSCAPE DESIGN ALONG GALLOWS ROAD FOR THE TYSONS URBAN
CENTER IN FAVOR OF THAT SHOWN ON THE CDP/FDP.

Commissioners Koch and Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Koch and Mr. Lusk. Any discussion? All in favor of
that motion to recommend the Board approve a waiver of the barrier requirements and
modification of non-core streetscape design, say aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel: Abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel abstains. Mr. Lawrence.

Commissioner Lawrence : Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS A WAIVER OF THE 200 SQUARE
FOOT PRIVACY YARD REQUIREMENT FOR SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED
DWELLINGS.
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Vice Chairman Byers : Seconded by Mr . Lusk. Any discussion? All in favor of the motion to
recommend the Board approve a waiver of the 200 square foot privacy yard requirement, say
aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel : Abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers : Ms. Harsel abstains . Mr. Lawrence.

Commissioner Lawrence: Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION
OF THE LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENT FOR MULTI-FAMILY DWELLINGS IN
FAVOR OF ONE LOADING SPACE PROVIDED FOR EACH OF THE TWO BUILDINGS,
TWO TOTAL SPACES.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers : Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Any discussion? All in favor of that motion to
recommend the Board approve a modification of the loading space requirement , say aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel : I abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel abstains.

Commissioner Lawrence: Finally, Mr. Chairman, I move that the Planning Commission approve
FDP 2003-PR-0 -- I'm sorry -- I MOVE THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A WAIVER OF THE 600 FOOT
MAXIMUM LENGTH OF PRIVATE STREETS.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Did you put two motions together there?

Commissioner Lawrence: I don't think so. I didn't read it properly. May I read it again?
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Vice Chairman Byers: You wanted to make a motion -- you wanted the Board to approve a
modification of a 600 foot private road --

Commissioner Lawrence: A waiver of the 600 foot maximum length.

Vice Chairman Byers: All right. Any discussion? All in favor of that motion, say aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel: Abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel abstains. Motion passes. You have one more, I believe.

Leslie Johnson: Mr. Chairman?

Vice Chairman Byers: Have the FDP?

Commissioner Lawrence: I did that as the third motion.

Ms. Johnson: I didn't hear it.

Vice Chairman Byers: I didn't either. I'm checking them off here.

Commissioner Harsel: I did and I abstained.

Vice Chairman Byers: All right.

Commissioner Lawrence: Abstention sharpens the senses.

Vice Chairman Byers: All right. Thank you very much.

II

(Each motion carried by a vote of 7-0-1 with Commissioner Harsel abstaining ; Commissioner
Alcorn not present for the vote; Commissioners Hall, Murphy, and Wilson absent from the
meeting.)

LBR
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